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Ocitober 15, 2021

Boswell Repgional Center
1049 Simpson Hywy. 149
Magee, Mississippi 39111

RE:  PROBABLE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT TO PROTTECTION AND
ADVOCACY Y'OR PERSONS WIT'H DEVELOPMENTAT, DISABILITI:S
(“PADD?)

To Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this correspondence, is notifying you that
our agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/os neglect at Boswell
Regional Center (“BRC”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as our
monitoting has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect. DRMS
may investigate potential abuse and/ot neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”) agency for
the state of Mississippi,

AUTHORITY
Passuant to 42 U.S.C. § 15043, DRMS has the authotity to investigate abuse and neglect in any
setting where a person with intellectual ot developmental disabilities receives services, With this

authority, we may access and monitor both facilities and records to ensure that people’s rights ate
protected. DRMS may investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a report is made or “if there is
probable cause to believe that abuse or neglect has occurred™

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to residents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect’, A determination of probable cause can come from routine

42 US.C. § 15043(n)(2)(B) - Congress enacted the PADD, PAIMI and PATR Acts (also known as the “P&A lws”) 1o
protect the human and civil rights of individuals with mental and developmental disabilitics institutionalized in state
facilities. The PADD Act, which was originally enacted in 1975 but repealed and replaced in its entirety in 2000,
established the Protection and Advocacy System to provide protections for persons with developmental disabilitics. e
42 U.5.C. § 15041, The PAIMI Act was modeled after the PADD Act to provide parallel protections fox persons with
mental disabilities. See 42 U.8.C. § 10803, The PAIR Act further extended the protection and advocacy mandate to
protect the rights of individuals with disabilities who are ineligible for services under the PADD and PAIMI Acts. See 29
US.C. § 794e().

242 US.C, § 15043(3)(2)(B)

+45 CIR. § 1326.27(h)

Exhibit ID

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
WWW.Arms.ms




Case 3:21-cv-00726-CWR-FKB Document 1-4 Filed 11/09/21 Page 2 of 35

monitosing, extetnal reports, ditect complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available
soutces.! DRMS, as the P&A, is the final asbiter of probable cause for the puspose of triggering its
authotity to access and this decision is not subject to review. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providers, programs in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that are
used by individuals with disabilities ot are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request’. This authotity includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, or other persons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation. DRMS js not tequired to provide the name
or other identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet ox justify or
explain its intesactions with such petsons.’

Further, DRMS has access to a wide range of records® as patt of its investigatory authotity’. This
includes records made ot received by facility staff (i.e. intake, assessment, evaluation, education,
training, and other sexvices)", medical records', financial records™, investigation records from other
govetiimental or regulatory agencies", discharge planning records", and professional, performance,
building, ot othes safety standards including demographic and statistical information®™,

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As patt of jt investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occutred

during the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident repoits which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of BRC,

145 C.E.R. § 1326.25(x){(2) (i)

545 CER. § 1326.27(05)(2)

645 C.RR. § 1326.27(b)(1)

745 C.RR. § 1326.27(b)(2)

& Inn order to fulfill its duty to investigate and remedy instances of abuse and neglect of persons with disabilities, the Acts
provide Advocacy with the express authority to access the records, as well as facilities and residents of the Facilities who
have developmental disabilities or mental illness, to ensure that the rights of these vulnerable populations are not
violated. 42 U.S.C. §15043(a)(2)

? The P&A laws provide state-designated agencies [. . ] with broad investigatoxy authority, including access to records.
Se 42 US.C. § 15043(a)(2) (PADD Act); 42 U.S.C. §§ 10805(n), 10806(3)(A) (PAIMI Act); 29 U.S.C. § 794e(f)(2) (2008)
(PAIR Act), Advor, I p. Hory, No, A-08-CA-071-LY, 2009 WL 10698769, at *2 (W.D. Tex. Mar. 26, 2009) Records
may be “written or iti anotlicr medinm, draft or final, [and] includfe] handwrilten notes, clectronic files, photographs or
video or audio tape records,”( 45 C.E.R. § 13126.25(b)]

10 45 C.E.R. §1326.25(b}(1) {“This includes records stored or maintained at sites other than that of the service provider,

as well as records that were not prepared by the sexvice provider, but received by the service provider from other service
providers.”]

LL45 CER. § 1326.25 (b)(1)

2 d,

0 42 US.C. § 10543(0)(2)

M 421.8.C. § 10543()(3); 45 C.ER. § 1326.25 (b)(2)(iii)
145 C.RR. § 1326.25 (b)(4)
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Please provide IDRMS with copies of the tequested documentation within five (5) business days
upon teceipt of this written notice. 1 the charge to ptoduce such decumentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
documents prios to reproduction.

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and duting different shifts at BRC. However, monitoring access' and investigative access ate
different. As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff
interviews, and/or video susveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein,
DRMS requests that any further requested documentation that is tequired be provided to DRMS
within five (5) business days of such sequest. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this
cottespondence, we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has
been flagged by DRMS be preserved until such time as 2 DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site
visit to view such footage.

IEDRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or recotds is delayed or denied, BRC must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay imnmediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. 1 can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptribble@@drms.ms.

Sincetely,

Polly Tribble
ixecutive Director

cel Cyndi Bubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attortiey General

' Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure a mental Lealth facility's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CER. § 51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoting without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has oceurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compar: 42 C.ER,
§ 51.42(c) with 42 CF.R. § 51.42(b).
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October 15, 2021

Nogth Mississippi Reglonal Center
967 Regional Center Drive
Oxford, Mississippi 38655

RE: PROBABLE CAUSE NOTICK - PURSUANT T'O PROTECTION AND
ADVOCACY FOR PERSONS WITH DEVELOPMIENTAL DISABILITTES'
(“PADD?)

To Whom It May Concein:

Disability Rights Mississippi (‘“DRMS”), by and through (his correspondence, is nolilying you that
our agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at North
Mississippi Regional Center (‘NMRC”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility
as out monitoting has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect.
DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/ot neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”)
agency for the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORI'TY
Putsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 15043, DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse andk neglect in any

setting where a person with intellectual o1 developmental disabilities receives services, With this
authotity, we may access and monitor hoth facilities and recotds to ensute that people’s tights are
protected. DRMS may investigate an allegation of abuse ot neglect if a report is madle ox “if there is
ptobable cause to believe that abuse or neglect has occuired™

DRMS must have teasonable unaccompanied access to tesidents at all time in ordet to investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoring, external repotts, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other avaitable

142 U.8.C. § 15043()(2)(B) - Congtess enacted the PADD, PAIMI and PAIR Acts {also known as the “P&A kaws”) to
protect the human and civil rights of individuals with mental and developmental disabilities instituntionalized in state
Eacilities. The PADD Act, which was originally enacted in 1975 but repealed and replaced in its entirety in 2000,
established the Protection and Advocacy System to provide protections for persons with developmental disabilities. See
42 U.S.C. § 15041. The PAIMI Act was modeled after the PADDY Act to provide parallel protections for persons with
mental disabilities. See 42 U.S.C. § 10803. The PAIR Act futther extended the protection and advocacy mandate to
protect the tights of individuals with disabilities who arc incligible for services under the PADD and PAIMI Acts. Sec 29
US.LC. § 794e(f).

242 ULS.C. § 15043(=)(2(1)

345 C.ER. § 1326.27(15)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
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sources.' DRMS, as the P&A, is the fina) arbites of probable cause for the purpose of triggeting its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to review. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providess, programs in the state, and to all ageas of the service provider’s premises that ate
used by individuals with disabilitics or are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request®. This authority includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, or othet persons who DRMS might be teasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation. DRMS is not required to provide the name
or other identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet of justify ot
explain its iteractions with such petsons.”

Further, DRMS has access to a wide range of recotds® as past of its investigatory authority’. This
includes records made or seceived by facility staff (Le. intake, assessment, evaluation, education,
training, and other services)", medical records"!, financial records', investigation recoxds from other
governmental of regulatoty agencies”, discharge planaing records', and professional, performance,
building, or other safety standards including demographic and statistical information®.

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As part of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occurred

duting the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident repotts which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of NMRC.,

145 CER. § 1326.25()(2)(i)
345 C.E, § 1326.27(0)(2)
645 CER. § 1326.27()(1)
745 CER. § 1326.27(b)(2)

#In order to fulill its duty to investigate and remedy instances of abuse and neglect of persons with disabilities, the Acts
provide Advocacy with the express authority to access the records, ns well as facilities and residents of the facilities who
have developmental disabilitics or mental illness, to ensure that the rights of these vulnerable populations are not
violated. 42 U.S.C. §15043(2)(2)

? The P&A laws provide state-designated agencies [. . .] with broad investigatory anthority, including access to records.
See 42 US.C. § 15043(a)(2) (PADD Act); 42 U.S.C. §§ 10805(x), 10806(3)(A) (PATMI Act); 29 US.C. § 794e(D(2) (2008)
(PAIR Act), Adioc, Ine. v. Horu, No. A-08-CA-071-1Y, 2009 WL 10698769, at *2 (W.D. Tex. Mar. 26, 2009) Recotds
may be “written or in another medium, draft ot final, [and] includfe] handwritten notes, electronic files, photographs ot
video or audio tape records.”] 45 C.E.R. § 1326.25(b)}

1045 C.E.R. §1326.25(b)(1) {*This includes records stored or maintained at sites other than that of the service provider,
as well as records that were not prepared by the service provider, but received by the sexrvice provider from other setvice
providers.”]

145 C.F.R. §1326.25 (b)(1)

21d.

B 42 U.S.C. § 10543(h)(2)

H42 US.C. § 10543(c)(3); 45 C.F.R. § 1326.25 (b)(2)(ii)

1545 C.FR. § 1326.25 (b)(d)
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Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. 1f the charge to produce such dogumentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
documents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitosing visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and during different shifts at NMRC. However, monitoring access™ and investigative access are
different, As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request othet documents, employee/staff
interviews, and/or video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein.
DRMS requests that any further requested documentation that is requited he provided to DRMS
within five (5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video sucveillance not noted in this
cortespondence, we will notify this facility iinmediately and we request that any footage that has
been flagged by DRMS be presetved until such titne as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site
visit to view such footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, tesidents, ot records is delayed or denied, NMRC must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay imunediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. I can be
seached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) ot via email at ptribble@dtms.ms,

Sincerely,

Va2 -

Polly Tribble
Executive Director

o Cyndi Eubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General

1 Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mentat
illness, as well as ensure 4 mental health faciligy's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CER. §51.42(c){1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has oceneeed, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Cospare 42 C.F.R.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 C.F.R. § 51.42(b).
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Oclober 15, 2021

South Mississippi Regional Center
1170 W. Railvoad Street
Long Beach, Mississippi 39560

RE:  PROBABLIEE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUAN'T I'O PROTECIION AND
ADVOCACY FOR PERSONS WI'TH DEVELOPMENTAL, DISABILITTES!
(“PADD?)

To Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this correspondence, is notifying you that
our agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at South
Mississippi Regional Center (“SMRC”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility
as our monitoring has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect.
DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/ot neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”)
agency for the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORITY
Putsuant to 42 U.S.C, § 15043, DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse and neglect in any
setting where a person with intellectual or developmental disabilities receives services, With this

authority, we may access and monitor both facilities and records to ensure that people’s rights are
protected. DRMS may investigate an allegation of abuse ot neglect if a teport is made or “if there is
probable cause to believe that abuse or neglect has occurred”

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to residents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect’. A detegmination of probable cause can come from routine

monitoting, external repotts, direct complaint from client and/o¢ their family, and/or other available

PA2 US.C. § 15043()(2)(B) - Congress enacted the PADD, PATMI and PAIR Acts (also known as the “P&A laws”) to
protect the human and civil vights of individuals with mental and developmental disabilities institutionalized in state
facilitics. The PADD Act, which was originally enacted in 1975 but repealed and replaced in its entivety in 2000,
established the Protection and Advocacy System to provide protections for persons with developmental disabilities. See
42 U.5.C. § 15041, The PAIMI Act was modeled after the PADD Act (o provide parallel protections for persons with
mentat disabilitics. See 42 U.S.C. § 10803, The PAIR Act further extended the protection and advocacy mandate to
protect the rights of individuals with disabilities who are ineligible for services under the PADD and PAIMI Acts, See 29
U.S.C. § 794e(f).

242 U.S.C. § 15043 (2)(B)

145 CER. § 1326.27(b)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
www.clrims.ms
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sources,’ DRMS, as the P&A, is the final atbiter of probable cause for the purpose of triggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to review. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providers, programs in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that are
used by individuals with disabilities ox are accessible 1o them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon tequest. This authority includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, or other persons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.* DRMS is not tequired to provide the name
or othex identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify ot
explain its interactions with such persons.”

Further, DRMS has access to a wide range of tecords® as patt of its investigatory authority’. This
includes recotds made ot teceived by facility staff (i.e. intake, assesstent, evaluation, education,
training, and other services)", medical records", financial records™, investigation records from othet
govetnmental or regulatory agencies®, dischacge planning records™, and professional, performance,
building, or other safety standards including demographic and statistical information™.

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As pait of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occusred

duting the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident repotts which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of SMRC.

45 C.ER. § 1326.25()(2) ity

> 45 C.ER. § 1326.27(1)(2)

¢45 C.ER. § 1326.27(b)(1)

745 C.ER. § 1326.27(b)(2)

# In order to fulfill its duty to investigate and remedy instances of abuse and neglect of persons with disabililies, the Acts
provide Advocacy with the express authosity to access the records, as well as facilities and residents of the facilities who
have developmental disabilities or mentat illness, to ensure that the rights of these vulnerable populations ate not
violated. 42 U.S.C. §15043(n)(2)

? The P&A hws provide state-designated agencies [. . ] with broad investigatory authority, including access to records.
e 42 U.S.C, § 15043(a)(2) (PADD Act); 42 US.C. §§ 10805(a), 10806(3)(A) (PAIMI Act); 29 US.C. § 794¢(f)(2) (2008)
(PAIR Act). Advos, Tne. v. Horn, No. A-08-CA-071-LY, 2009 WL 10698769, at 2 (W.D. Tex. Mat, 26, 2009) Records
may be “written or in another medium, draft ox final, [and}] includ[e] handwritten notes, electronic files, photogtaphs or
video or audio tape records.”’[ 45 C.ER, § 1326.25(b)]

1045 C.F.R. §1326.25(b)(1) [“This includes records stored or maintained at sites other than that of the service provider,
as well as records that were not prepared by the service providet, but received by the service provider from other service
providers.”]

45 C.ER. § 1326,25 (b)(1)

121d.

B42U8.C. §10543(b)(2)

42 U8.C. § 10543(c)(3); 45 C.ER. § 1326.25 (L) (2) (i)

1345 CE.R, §1326.25 (b)(4)
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Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five {5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to_inspect the
docuinents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occut unannounced
and during different shifts at SMRC. However, monitoting access' and investigative access are
different. As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff
intexviews, and /ot video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein.
DRMS requests that any fusther requested documentation that is required be provided to DRMS
within five (5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video sutveillance not noted in this
correspondence, we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has
been flagged by DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site
visit to view such footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or records is delayed or denied, SMRC must
» prog » )
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the seasons for such denial or delay immediately.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. I can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) ot via email at ptribble@dims.ms.

Sincerely,
- g
4
AR e

Polly Tribble
Bxecutive Directoy

ce: Cyndi Eubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General

' Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as welt as ensure a mental health faciliy's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CFR. § 51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without

probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 C.ER.
§ 51.42(c) wirth 42 C.ER. § 51.42(b).
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[ DISABILITY

October 15, 2021

Nosth Mississippi State Hospital
1937 Briar Ridge Road
Tupelo, Mississippi 38804

RE:  PROBABLE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT 10 PROTECITON AND
ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITTH MENTAL ILLNESS' (“PAIMI»)

To Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this correspondence, is notifying you that
onr agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at North
Mississippi State Hospital (“NMSH”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as
our monitoring has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abusc and/or neglect.
DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/os neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”)
agency for the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORITY
Pursuant to 42 U.8.C. § 10801(b)(2)(B), DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse and neglect in

any setting where a person with mental illness receives services, With this authority, we may access

and monitor both facilities and records to ensure that people’s rights are protected. DRMS may
investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a tepott is made or “if there is probable cause to

believe that abuse or neglect has occuired”?

DRMS must have seasonable unaccompanied access to residents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and/ox neglect". A determination of probable cause can come from routine

monitoring, external reports, direct complaint from client and/ot theit family, and/ox other available

142 CRR. § 51.42()(2)
242 US.C. § 10801(b)(2)(B)
342 CRR. § 51.42(b)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
www,adrms.ms
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sources’. DRMS, as the P&A, is the final arbiter of probable cause® for the purpose of triggering its
authotity to access and this decision is not subject to review®. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providers, ptograms in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that ate
used by individuals with disabilitics or ate accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request. This authority includes the ability to inteiview
any individual with a disability, employee, or othes persons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.” DRMS is not required to provide the name
or othes identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet ot justify or
explain its interactions with such persons. Fugther, DRMS shall have broad right of access to all
records relevant to an investigation®.

Futther, DRMS has access to a wide range of fecotds as part of its investigatory authority, The
PAIMI Act defines records to which the P&A must have access to as information and individual
recotds, whethet wtitten or in another medium (draft or final), inchuding handwritten notes,
electronic files, photographs, ot video/audio records including but not limited to:

(1) Information and individual records, obtained in the course of intake, assessment,
evaluation, supportive and other services, including medical records, financial recotds, and
tepotts prepated ot seceived by a nember of the staff of a facility and/or program rendering
cate and treatment. This includes records stoted os maintained in locations other than the
facility or program as long as the system as obtained appsropiiate consent consistent with
Section 105(a)(4) of the PAIMI Act.

(2) Repotts prepated by an agency charged with investigating abuse/neglect, or injuty occutting
at a facility rendeting care or treatment, ot hy ot for the facility itself, that described any or
all of the following: abuse/neglect/ injury occurring at the facility, steps taken to investigate
the incidents, reports/records (including personnel) records, prepared or maintained by the
facility, and/or suppotting information that was relied upon in creating « repot, including all
information and recotds used ot teviewed in prepating reports of abuse, neglect, or injury

142 0.8.C. § 10801 (L)(2(B)

3 “Probable cause means reasonable grounds for belief that an individual with mental illness has been, or may be at
significant risk of being subject to abuse or neglect. The individual making such determination may base the decision on
reasonable inferences drawn from his or her expetience ot training regarding similar incidents, conditions or problems
that are usually associated with abuse or neglect.” Adroc Ine v Tapant Cty. Hosp, Dist,, No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL
1297688, at *4 (N.D. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

¢ “Because the act indicates that the P & A system is the final arbiter of probable cause as between itsetf and the subject
facility, the facility may not refuse access to tecords merely because it disagrees with the existence of probable cause.”
Advos, Ine, 0. Tarrant Cty, Hosp. Disr,, No, 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL 1297688, a1 *4 (NI, Tex, Oct. 11, 2001)

T42 CER. § 51.42(b)

842 1.8.C. §§ 10805(x)(4), 15043() (2D, ()
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such as records which describe petsons who wexe interviewed, physical and documentaty
evidence that was reviewed, and the related investigative findings.

(3) Dischatge planning records

(4) Repotts prepased by individuals and entitics performing cestification or licensute teviews of
by professional accreditation oxganizations, as well as selated assessments prepated for the
facility by its staff, contractors, ot related entities

(8) Professional, petformance, building, or other safety standards, demographic, and statistical
information relating to facility

(6) Reasonable access to intetview and examine all relevant records of any facility service
recipient consistent with Section 10805(a)(4) of the Act or employee

(1) Inspect and copy records, subject to a teasonable charge

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST,
As patt of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occutred

duting the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident reposts which have been
filed thus fat in the month of October 2021 in the possession of NMSH.

Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
docuinents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced

and dusing diffesent shifts at NMSH. However, monitoring access’ and investigative access ate
different.

As this investigation proggesses, DRMS may tequest other documents, employee/staff interviews,
and/or video sutveillance footage pursuant to the access authority seferenced herein. DRMS
requests that any further requested documentation that is requited be provided to DRMS within five
(5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this correspondence,
we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has been flagged by

9 Monitoring access allows 2 P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure a mental health facility's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CER. § 51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A systemn can engage in mounitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compar 42 C.ER.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 C.ER. § 51.42(b).
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DRMS be preserved vatil such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site visit to view such
footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or records is delayed or denied, NMSH must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay immediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. I can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptribble@dims.ms.

Sinceyely,
e
/
pﬂ% Widhe
Polly Tribble

Fxecutive Director

cc Cyndi Eubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney Genetal
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DISABILITY

Octlober 15, 2021

Ellisville State School
1101 Old Hwy 11
Ellisville, Mississippi 39437

RE:  PROBABLIE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT IO PROTECITON AND
ADVOCACY FOR PERSONS WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES'
(“PADD?)

To Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this cotrespondence, is notifying you that
our agency has probable cause to believe that thete is potential abuse and/ox neglect at Plisville
State School (“Bliisville™). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as our
monitosing has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect, DRMS
may investigate potential abuse and/ox neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”) agency for
the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORITY
Pugsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 15043, DRMS has the anthority to investigate abuse and neglectin any

setting whete a person with intellectual or developmental disabilities receives setvices, With this
authority, we may access and monitor both facilities and recotds to ensure that people’s rights are
protected. DRMS may investigate an allegation of abuse ox neglect if a report is made or “if there is

probable cause to believe that abuse ot neglect has occurred”™

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanicd access to residents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoring, external reports, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available

142 US.C. § 15043()(2)(B) - Congress enacted the PADD, PAIMI and PAIR Acts (also known as the “P&A laws”) to
protect the human and civil rights of individuals with mental and developmental disabilities institutionalized in state
facilities. The PADD Act, whicl was otiginally enacted in 1975 but xepealed and replaced in its entirety in 2000,
established the Protection and Advocacy System to provide protections for persons with developmental disabilities. See
42 U.8.C. § 15041, The PAIME Act was modeled after the PADD Act to provide parallel protections for persons with
mental disabilities. See 42 U.S.C. § 10803. The PAIR Act further extended the protection and advocacy mandate to
protect the sights of indivicuals with disabilitics who ate ineligible for services under the PADD and PAIMIE Acts. See 29
U.S.C. § 794e(f).

242 U.S.C. § 15043(n)(2)(B)

445 CER. §1326.27()

4601-968-0600
WWW.Arms.ams

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
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sources.” DRMS, as the P&A4, is the final atbitexr of probable cause for the purpose of triggering its
authotity to access and this decision is not subject to review. DRMS’ access to public and private
service providers, programs in the state, and to all aceas of the service provider’s premises that ave
used by individuals with disabilitics ot are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available imimediately upon tequest’. This authority includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, or other pessons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.* DRMS is not required to provide the name
ot other identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify ot
explain its interactions with such petsons.’

Futther, DRMS has access to a wide range of records® as patt of its investigatory authotity’. This
includes records made os received by facility staff (i.c. intake, assessment, evaluation, education,
training, and other sesvices)", medical records", financial records'?, investigation records from other
govertunental ot tegulatory agencies”, discharge planning records", and professional, performance,
building, or other safety standards including demographic and statistical information®,

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As pat of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occuoired

during the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident repotts which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of Ellisville.

+45 C.F.R. § 1326.25(2)(D (i)

545 CER. §1326.27(b)2)

445 CER. § 1326.27()(1)

745 C.RR. § 1326.27()2)

8 In order to fulfill its duty to investigate and remedy instances of abuse and neglect of petsons with disabilities, the Acts
provide Advocacy with the express authority to access the records, ns well as facilities and residents of the facilities who
have developmental disabilities or mental illness, to ensure that the tights of these vulnerable populations are not
violated. 42 U.S.C. §15043(2)(2)

% The P&A laws provide state-designated agencies {. . ] with broad investigatoty anthority, including access to records.
See 42 U.S.C. § 15043(2)(2) (PADD Act); 42 U.S.C. §§ 10805(n), 10806(3)(A) (PAIMI Act); 29 U.S.C. § 794e()(2) (2008)
(PAIR Act). Adves, Ine. . Horn, No. A-08-CA-071-LY, 2009 WL 10698769, at *2 (W.D. T'ex. Mar. 26, 2009) Records
may be “written ot in another medium, draft ot final, [and) includfe] handwtitten notes, electronic files, photographs ot
video or audio tape records.”[ 45 C.E.R. § 1326.25(b)]

45 C.ER. §1326.25(b){L) {“This includes records stored or maintained at sites other than that of the service provider,

as well as recotds that were not prepared by the service provider, but received by the service provider from other service
providers.”)

{45 C.RR. § 1326.25 (b)(1)

1214,

8 42 US.C. § 10543(b)(2)

U 42 U.S.C. § 10543(c)(3); 45 C.F.R. § 1326.25 (b)(2)(i)
1545 C.ER. § 1326.25 (b)(4)
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Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon seceipt of this written notice. If the chatge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
documents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and during different shifts at Ellisville, However, monitoring access' and investigative access are
different. As this investigation progtesses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff
intexviews, and/or video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein.
DRMS tequests that any further requested documentation that is required be provided to DRMS
within five (5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this
cortespondence, we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has
been flagged by DRMS be presesved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site
visit to view such footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or recotds is delayed or denied, Ellisville must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial ot delay immediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. I can be
teached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptribble@drms.ms.

Sincetely,

H W%@&M
Polly Tribble

Executive Director

cc: Cyndi Eubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attotney Genetal

¢ Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure o mental health facility's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
C.ER. § 51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 C.ER,
§ 51.42(c) with 42 CER. § 51.42().
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Oclober 15, 2021

South Mississippi State Hospital
823 MS-589
Purvis, Mississippi 39475

RE:  PROBABLE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT 'I'O PROTECTION AND
ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH MENTAL ILLNESS' (“PAIMI”)

T'o Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this correspondence, is notifying you that
our agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at South
Mississippi State Hospital (“SMSH”), IDRMS will be condueting an investigation into this facility as
our moniforing has led us to believe that theie is consistent and ongoing abuse and/ox neglect.
DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/or neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”)
agency for the state of Mississippi.

AUTTHORITY
Pugsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 10801(1b)(2)(3), DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse and neglect in
any setting where a person with mental illness receives services. With this authority, we may access
and monitos both facilities and records to ensute that people’s rights are protected. DRMS may
investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a report is made or “if there is probable cause to
believe that abuse ot neglect has occurred™?

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to resiclents at all time in order to investigate
allepations of abuse and/or neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
moniforing, external repoits, divect comphint from client and/or theis family, and/or other available

V42 CRR. § 51.42(0)(2)
242 US.C. § 10801 (b)(2)(B)
Y42 C.ER. § 51.42(D)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
WWWL SIS
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soutces’, DRMS, as the P&A, is the final atbiter of probable cause’ for the purpose of triggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to yeview®. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providers, programs in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that are
used by individuals with disabilities ot are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately uposn request. "This authority includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employce, or other petsons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.” DRMS is not required to provide the name
ot other identifying information regasding the people with whom it plans to meet ot justify or
explain its interactions with such petsons. Further, DRMS shall have broad tight of access to all
records relevant to an investigation®.

Further, DRMS has access to a wide range of records as patt of its investigatory authority. The
PAIMI Act defines records to which the P&A must have access to as information and individual
records, whethes written or in another medium (deaft or final), including handwritten notes,
electronic files, photographs, ot video/audio records including but not limited to:

(1) TInformation and individual records, obtained in the course of jutake, assessment,
evaluation, suppottive and othes services, including medical records, financial secords, and
sepotts prepared ot received by a member of the staff of a facility and/or program rendeting
care and treatment. This inchudes records stored or maintained in locations othes than the
facility or progtam as long as the system as obtained appropriate consent consistent with
Section 105(a){4) of the PAIMI Act.

(2) Reports prepased by an agency charged with investigating abuse/neglect, ot injuty occurting
at a facility rendering cate ot treatment, ot by ot for the facility itself, that described any ot
all of the following: abuse/neglect/ injuty occutting at the facility, steps taken to investigate
the incidents, reports/recotds (including petsonnel) records, prepared ot maintained by the
facility, and/ot suppotting information that was telied upon in creating a report, including ail
information and recoxds used or teviewed in prepating reports of abuse, neglect, or injury

442 U.S.C. § 10801(b){(2)(B)

5 “Probable cause means reasonable grounds for belief that an individual with mental illness has been, or may be at
significant risk of being subject to abuse or neglect. The individual making such determination may base the decision on
reasonable inferences drawn from his ot her experience or training regarding similar incidents, conditions ot problems
that are usually associated with abuse ot neglect.” Advoc. Inc. v. Tarvant Cly. Hosp. Dist., No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 W1
1207688, at ¥4 (N.D. Tex. Oct, 11, 2001)

6 “Because the act indicates that the P & A system is the final arbiter of probable cause as between itself and the subject
facility, the facility may not refuse access to records merely because it disagrees with the existence of probable cause.”
Advor. In. v. Tarant Cty. Hosp. Dist., No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL 1297688, at *4 (N.D. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

142 C.FR. §51.42(0)

842 U.S.C. §§ 10805(a)(4), 15043(x)(2)(D), (1)
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such as records which descsibe persons who were interviewed, physical and documentary
evidence that was reviewed, and the related investigative findings.

(3) Dischatge planning records

(4) Repotts prepared by individuals and entities pexforming cestification or licensute reviews ox
by professional acereditation organizations, as well as related assessments prepated fox the
facility by its staff, contractors, or yelated entities

(5) Professional, perforimance, building, or other safety standards, demoggaphic, and statistical
information relating to facility

(6) Reasonable access to interview and examine all relevant tecotds of any facility service
recipient consistent with Section 10805(a)(4) of the Act or employee

(7) Inspect and copy tecotds, subject to a reasonable chasge

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As pait of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident repotts which occutted

during the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident reports which have been
filed thus far in the month of Octobeyr 2021 in the possession of SMSIH.

Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the

documents prior to reproduction.

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced

and during different shifts at SMSH. However, monitoring access’ and investigative access ate
different.

As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff interviews,
and/or video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein. DRMS
requests that any fusther requested documentation that is requited be provided to DRMS within five
(5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video swiveillance not noted in this correspondence,
we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has been flagged by

? Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure a mental health facility's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CER. § 51.42()(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoting without any comphint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 C.ER.
§ 51.42(c) mith 42 CF.R. § 51.42(1).
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DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site visit to view such
footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or records is delayed or denied, SMSH must
promptly provide a wiitten statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay immediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regatding this notice. I can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at pribble@dsms.ms,

Sincerely,

Polly Tribble
Executive Director

cc: Cyndi Bubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General
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October 15, 2021

Central Mississippi Resicential Center
701 Notthside Dyive
Newton, Mississippi 39345

RE:  PROBABLYE CAUSKE NOTICE - PURSUANI 'T'0 PROTECTION AND
ADVOCACY I'OR INDIVIDUALS WITII MENTAL ILLNESS! (“PAIMI»)

To Whom It NMay Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and thiough this cotrespondence, is notifying you that
out agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at Central
Mississippi Residential Center (“CMRC™), DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this
facility as our monitoting has led us to helieve that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or
neglect. DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/or neglect as the Protection & Advocacy
(“P&A”) agency for the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORITY
Putsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 10801(b}2)(B), DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse and neglect in
any setting whetc a person with mental illness receives services, With this authority, we may access
and monitor both facilities and records to ensuge that people’s rights are protected. DRMS may
investigate an allegation of abuse of neglect if a seport is made or “if there js probable cause to
believe that abuse or neglect has occurred™?

DRMS nust have reasonable unaccompanied access to residents at all time in order to investigﬂte

allegations of abuse and/ox neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoring, external teports, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available

142 C.RR. § 51.42((:)(2)“ o
242 US.C. § 10801(B)(2)(B)
Y02 CER. § 51.4200)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
401-968-0600
WWW.AINmMs.ms
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sources®. DRMS, as the P&A, is the final arbiter of probable cause® for the purpose of triggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to review®, DRMS’ access to public and private
seivice providers, programs in the state, and to alt areas of the service provider’s premises that are
used by individuals with disabilities o1 ate accessible to them wilt be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request, ‘This authority includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, or othes persons who IDRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.” DRMS is not required to provide the name
or other identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify ox
explain its interactions with such persons. Fusther, DRMS shall have broad sight of access to all
records relevant to an investigation®.

Fusther, DRMS has access to a wide range of recosds as patt of its investigatory authotity. The
PAIMI Act defines records to which the P&A must have access to as information and indivicdual
recotds, whether written ot in another medium (draft or final), including handwritten notes,
electronic files, photographs, or video/audio records including but not limited to:

(1) Information and individual records, obtained in the cousse of intake, asscssiment,
evaluation, supportive and other services, including medical records, financial records, and
teposts prepared ot teceived by a member of the staff of a facility and/or program rendering
cate and treatment. ‘This includes records stored ot maintained in locations other than the
facility or program as long as the system as obtained appropriate consent consistent with
Section 105(a)(4) of the PAIMI Act.

(2) Reports prepared by an agency charged with investigating abuse/ neglect, or injuty occurring
at a facility rendeting care ot treatment, ot by ot for the facility itself, that desctibed any or
all of the following: abuse/neglect/ injury occurring at the facility, steps taken to investigate
the incidents, repoits/records (including personnel) records, prepated or maintained by the
facility, and/or supporting information that was relied upon in creating a repott, including all
information and tecotds wsed or teviewed in preparing reports of abuse, neglect, ox injury

+42 US.C. § 10801(D)(2)(B)

* “Probable cause means reasonable grounds for belief that an individual with mental illness has been, or may be at
significant risk of being subject to abuse or neglect. The individual making such determination may base the decision on
reasonable inferences drawn from his or he experience or training regarding similac incidents, conditions or problems
that are uswally associated with abuse or neglect.” Lddvor. I, v Tarant Ciy. Hosp. Dist, No, 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL
1297688, at *4 (NLD. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

§ “Because the act indicates that the P & A system is the final arbiter of probable cause as between itsell and the subject
facility, the facility may not refuse access to records merely because it disagrees with the existence of probable cause.”
Advoe. Inc. v, Tarrant Cry. Hosp, Dist., No, 401-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL 1297688, at ¥4 (N.D. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

T42 CER. § 51.42(0)

242 US.C. §§ 10805()(4), 15043())(D), (1)
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such as tecords which describe persons who wete interviewed, physical and documentaty
evidence that was reviewed, and the related investigative findings.

(3) Discharge planning secords

{(4) Repoits prepared by individuals and entities performing certification or licensure reviews or
by professional accreditation organizations, as well as related assessments prepared for the
facility by its staff, contractors, ot selated entities

(5) Professional, performance, building, or othes: safety standards, demographic, and statistical
information relating to facility

(6) Reasonable access to interview and examine all televant records of any facility service
recipient consistent with Section 10805(a)(4) of the Act or employee

(7) Inspect and copy records, subject to a reasonable charge

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As part of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occugred

duting the months of August and Septembes of 2021 as well as the incident reports which have heen
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of CMRC.

Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an

amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the

documents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and duting different shifts at CMRC. However, monitoring access® and investigative access ate
different.

As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff interviews,
and/ot video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced herein, DRMS
requests that any facther requested documentation that is required be provided to DRMS within five
(5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this cortespondence,
we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has been flagged by

? Monitosing access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure a meatal health facility's “complinnce with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
C.ER. § 51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to helieve that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 CER.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 C.ER. § 51.42(h).
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DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site visit to view such
footage,

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, or tecords is delayed or denied, CMRC must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay immediately.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. 1 can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) ot via email at ptribble@drms.ms.

Sincetely,

P T

Polly Tribble
Fxecutive Director

ce: Cyndi Eubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General
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Qctober 15, 2021

Mississippi Staie Hospital
3550 MS-468
Pearl, Mississippi 39208

RIEE:  PROBABLIE CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT 'TO PROTECTION AND
ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH MENTAL ILLNESS' (“PAIMI?)

To Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“IDRMS”), by and through this correspondence, is notifying you that
our agency has probable cause to helieve that there is potential abuse and/or neglect at Mississippi
State Hospital (*"MSH”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as our
monitoring has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect. DRMS
may investipate potential abuse and/or neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”) agency for
the state of Mississippi.

AUTTIORITY
Pugsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 10801(H)(2)(13), DRMS has the authotity to investigate abuse and neglect in
any sctting whete a person with mental illness receives services. With this authotity, we may access

and monitor both facilities and recotds to ensure that people’s rights are protected. DRMS may
investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a tepott is made or “if there is probable cause to
believe that abuse ot neglect has occurred™

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to esidents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and/ot neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoring, external teports, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available

42 CER. § 51.42()(2)
242 US.C. § 10801(b)(2)(B)
342 CRR. § 51.420))

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-92468-0600
Www, drms.ms
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sources®. DRMS, as the P&A, is the final arbiter of probable cause® for the puspose of triggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to teview’. DRMS’ access to public and private
setvice providers, progiams in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that ate
used by individuals with disabilities ot are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available inmediately upon request. This authority includes the ability to intetview
any individual with a disability, employee, o other persons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.” DRMS is not required to provide the name
or other identifying infogmation regarding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify ot
explain its interactions with such pegsons. Furthes, DRMS shall have broad right of access to all
records relevant to an investigation®,

Futther, DRMS has access to a wide range of records as part of its investigatory authority. The
PAIMI Act defines recosds to which the P&A must have access to as information and individual
tecords, whethet written or in another medium (diaft or final), including handwritten notes,
electronic files, photographs, ot video/audio tecords including but not limited to:

(1) Information and individual records, obtained in the course of intalke, assessment,
evaluation, suppostive and other services, including medical records, financial records, and
repotts prepated ot received by a4 member of the staff of a facility and/or program rendering
care and treatment, This includes records stored or maintained in locations other than the
facility ot program as long as the system as obtained approptiate consent consistent with
Section 105(a)(4) of the PAIMI Act.

(2) Repotts prepared by an agency chatged with investigating abuse/neglect, or injury occurring
at a facility rendering care ot treattnent, ot by ot for the facility itself, that described any ox
all of the following; abuse/neglect/ injury occurring at the facility, steps taken to investigate
the incidents, reports/records (including personnel) records, prepared or maintained by the
facility, and/or supporting information that was telied upon in creating a repott, including all
inforination and records used ot reviewed in preparing reposts of abuse, neglect, or injury

4142 U.8.C. § 10801 (b)(2)(B)

3 “Probable cause nieans reasonable grounds for belief that an individual with mental llness has been, or may be at
significant risk of being subject to abuse or neglect. The individual making such determination may base the decision on
reasonable inlerences drawn from lis or her experience or training regarding similar incidents, conditions or problems
that are usually associated with abuse or neglect.” Adroe. Ine. o Tarvant Ciy. Hosp. Dist., No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 W1
1297688, at #4 (N.D. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

& “Because the act indicates that the P & A system is the final arbiter of probable cause as between itself and the subject
facility, the facility may not refuse access to records merely because it disagrees with the existence of probable eause.”
Advoe. Tne. v, Tarvant Cty, Hosp. Dist, No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL 1297688, at *4 (N.D. Tex. Oct, 11, 2001)

T42 CF.R. §51.42()

842 U.S.C. §§ 10805(2)(4), 15043R@)(2)(D, ()




Case 3:21-cv-00726-CWR-FKB Document 1-4 Filed 11/09/21 Page 27 of 35

such as records which describe persons who were interviewed, physical and docuimentaty
evidence that was reviewed, and the related investigative findings.

(3) Discharge planning recosds

(4) Repotts prepared by individuals and entities performing certification or licensure reviews of
by professional accseditation otganizations, as well as related assessments prepased for the
facility by its staff, contractots, or relted entitics

(5) Professional, performance, building, or other safety standards, demographic, and statistical
information telating to facility

(6) Reasonable access to interview and examine all relevant records of any facility service
yecipient consistent with Section 10805(a)(4) of the Act or employee

(7) Inspect and copy recoxds, subject to a reasonable charge

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As part of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occutred

during the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident reports which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of MSH.

Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days

upon receipt of this written notice. If the chatge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
documents priot to reproduction.

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoting visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and duting diffecent shifts at MSH. However, monitoring access’ and investigative access ate
different.

As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff interviews,
and/or video sueveillance footage puisuant to the access authority referenced herein. DRMS
tequests that any further requested documentation that is sequired be provided to DRMS within five
(5) business days of such request. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this cortespondence,
we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has been flagged by

? Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensute a mental health facility’s “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
CFR. §51.42(c)(1)-(2). A P&A systesm can engage in monitoring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 CF.I.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 CF.R. § 51.42(b).
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DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site visit to view such
footage.

1f DRMS’s access to facilitics, programs, residents, or records is delayed of denied, MSH must
promptly provide a written stateiment, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay imimediately.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions segarding this notice. I canbe
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptribble@drms.ms.

Sincerely,

- -

il T
Polly Triblle

Executive Director

cc: Cyndi Bubank, Office of the Attorney Genetal
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General
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QOctober 15, 2021

l'Iudspclh Regional Center
875 _MS:—{}';’ 5
Pearl, Mississippi 39208

RE:  PROBABLIE CAUSE NOJICE - PURSUANT 1O PROTECTION AN
ADVOCACY FOR PERSONS WI'IH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES!
(“PADD®)

'T'o Whom It May Concern:

Disability Rights Mississippi (“DRMS”), by and through this cortespondence, is notifying you that
out agency has probable cause (o believe that there is potential abuse and Jor neglect at Hudspeth
Regional Center (“HRC”). DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as our
monitosing has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect. DRMS
may investigate potential abuse and /or neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”) agency for
the state of Mississippi.

AUTHORILY.
Pussuant to 42 U.S.C. § 15043, DRMS has the anthority to investigate abuse and neglect in any
setting whete a person with intellectual o developmental disabilities receives services. With this
authority, we may access and monitor both facilities and records to ensute that people’s rights ate
protected. DRMS may investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a report is made or “if there is
probable cause to believe that abuse or neglect has oceurred”™

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to residents at all ime in ordet to investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect’. A detetmination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoring, external repoits, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available

42 US.C, § 15043(n)(2)(B) - Congress enacted the PADD, PAIMI and PAIR Acts (also known as the “P&A laws”) to
protect the human and civil rights of individuals with mental and developmental disabilities institutionalized o state
facilities. The PADD Act, which was originally enacted in 1975 but repealed and replaced in its entirety in 2000,
established the Protection and Advocacy System to provide protections [or persons with developmental disabilitics. See
42 U.8.C. § 15041, The PAIMI Act was modeled after the PADD Act to provide parallel protections for persons with
mental disabilities. See 42 U.S.C. § 10803, The PAIR Act further extended the protection and advocacy mandate to
protect the rights of individuals with disabilitics who are ineligible for setvices under the PADD and PAIME Acts. See 29
U.S.C. § 79e(f).

242 U.S.C. § 15043()(2)(B)

345 CER. §1326.27(0)

5 Old River Place, Suite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
WwWwW.arns.ams
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sources.t DRMS, as the P&A, is the final arbiter of probable cause for the purpose of tiiggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to review, DRMS’ access to public and pyivate
service providets, programs in the state, and to all arens of the service provider’s premises that ate
used by individuals with disabilities ot arc accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request’. This authotity includes the ability to intetview
any individual with a disability, employce, ot other petsons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident uader investigation. DRMS is not tequired to provide the name
ot other identifying information regarding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify or
explain its interactions with such persons.’

Futther, DRMS has access to a wide range of recotds® as pat of its investigatory authotity’. This
includes records made or received by facility staff (i.e. intake, assessment, evaluation, education,
training, and other services)", medical records", financial records'?, investigation records from other
povemmental or regulatoty agencies”, discharge planning records"™, and professional, performance,
building, ot other safety standaids including demographic and statistical information®.

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As pait of it investigation, DRMS requests access to any and all incident reports which occurred

duting the months of Augnst and September of 2021 as well as the incident reports which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of HRC.

145 CER. § 1326.25(x)(2)(fii)

545 C.ER. § 1326.27(b)2)

645 C.RR. § 1326.27(b)(1)

745 C.ER. § 1326.27(h)(2)

8 In order to fulfill its duty to investigate and rentedy instances of abuse and neglect of pecsons with disabilities, the Acts
provide Advocacy with the express authority to access the records, as well as facilities and residents of the facilities who
have developmental disabilities or mental iliness, to ensure that the rights of these vulnerable populations are not
violated, 42 U.S.C. §15043(a)(2)

? The P&A laws provide state-designated agencies [, . .] with broad investigatory authority, including access to records.
Ser 42 US.C. § 15043(a)(2) (PADD Act); 42 U.S.C. §§ 10805(a), 10806(3)(A) (PAIMI Act); 29 U.S.C. § 794¢(f)(2) (2008)
PAIR Act). Adree, I v. Horn, No. A-08-CA-071-LY, 2009 WL 10698769, at ¥2 (W.D. Tex. Mar. 26, 2009} Records
may he “written ot in another medinm, draft or final, [and] includ(e] handwritten notes, electronic files, photographs or
video or audio tape records.”[ 45 CER. § 1326.25(b}]

1845 C.ER. §1326.25(L)(1) [“This includes records stored or maintained at sites other than that of the service provider,
as well as tecords that were not prepared by the service provider, but received by the service provider from other service
providers.”}

1145 CER. § 1326.25 (b)(1)

214,

342 US.C. §10543(b)(2)

42 US.C, § 10543(c)(3); 45 C.ER. § 1326.25 (bY{(2)(iii)

1545 C.ER, § 1326.25 (b)(4)
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Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon teceipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to ingpect the
documents prior to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoting visits and these visits will occuy unannounced
and during different shifts at HRC, However, monitoring access'® and investigative access are
different. As this investigation proggesses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff
interviews, and/or video sutveillance footage pursuant to the access authotity referenced herein.
DRMS requests that any further requested docuntentation that is required be provided to DRMS
within five (5) business days of such request. It DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this
cotrespondence, we will notify this facility immediately and we request that any footage that has
been flagged by DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site
visit to view such footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, programs, residents, o1 recotds is delayed ot denied, HRC must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay immediately.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. I can be
reached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptibble@drms.ms.

Sincexely,
. — L
w “n ‘A{/) e
Polly Tiiblte

Executive Ditector

ce Cyndi Bubank, Office of the Attorney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General

16 Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to persons with mental
illness, as well as ensure a mental health facility's “compliance with tespect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
C.F.R. §51.42()(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in monitoring withont any comphint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has oceurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 C.ER.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 CF.R. § 51.42(b).
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October 15, 2021

[ast Mississippi State Hospital
1818 College Diive
Meridian, Mississippi 39307

RE:  PROBABLY: CAUSE NOTICE - PURSUANT TO PROTECTION AND
ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH MENTAL ITLINESS' (“PATMI?)

To Whom It May Concein:

Disability Rights Mississippi (‘DRMS”), by and through this cortespondence, is notifying you that
out agency has probable cause to believe that there is potential abuse and /or neglect at Bast
Mississippi State Hospital(“BMSH”), DRMS will be conducting an investigation into this facility as
our monitoting has led us to believe that there is consistent and ongoing abuse and/or neglect.
DRMS may investigate potential abuse and/or neglect as the Protection & Advocacy (“P&A”)
agency for the state ol Mississippi.

AUTHORITY
Pugsuant to 42 U.S.C. § 10801(h)(2)(B), DRMS has the authority to investigate abuse and neglect in
any setting whete a person with mental iliness yeceives services, With this anthority, we tmay access
and monitor both facilitics and records to ensure that people’s rights are protected. DRMS may
investigate an allegation of abuse or neglect if a report is made ot “if there is probable cause to
believe that abuse or neglect has occutred’™

DRMS must have reasonable unaccompanied access to tesidents at all time in order to investigate
allegations of abuse and/or neglect’. A determination of probable cause can come from routine
monitoting, external tepoxts, direct complaint from client and/or their family, and/or other available

142 CER. §51.42(9(2)
242 US.C. § 10801(b)(2)(B)
Y42 CR.R. § 51.42(0)

5 Old River Place, Svite 101, Jackson, MS 39202
601-968-0600
www,drms.ms
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soutces’. DRMS, as the P&A, is the final atbiter of probable cause® for the purpose of triggering its
authority to access and this decision is not subject to review®, DRMS’ access to public and private
service providers, programs in the state, and to all areas of the service provider’s premises that ate
used by individuals with disabilitics of are accessible to them will be provided without advance
notice and made available immediately upon request. This authotity includes the ability to interview
any individual with a disability, employee, ot othex persons who DRMS might be reasonably believe
to have knowledge of the incident under investigation.” DRMS is not requitred to provide the name
or othet identifying infoxmation regatding the people with whom it plans to meet or justify or
explain its interactions with such persons. Futher, DRMS shall have broad right of access to all
records relevant to an investigation®.

Further, DRMS has access to a wide tange of records as pact of its investigatory authority, The
PAIMI Act defines records to which the P&A must have aceess to as information and jndividual
yecotrds, whether wiitten or in anothet medium (draft o final), including handwritten notes,
electronic files, photographs, or video/audio records including but not limited to:

(1) Information and individual tecords, obtained In the course of intake, assessment,
evaluation, supportive and other services, including medical records, financial records, and
repotts prepared or received by a member of the staff of 2 facility and /o program rendeting
care and treatment. This includes records stored ot maintained in locations other than the
facility or program as long as the system as obtained appropriate consent consistent with
Section 105(2)(4) of the PAIMI Act.

(2) Reports prepated by an agency charged with investigating abuse/neglect, ot injury occusring
at a facility rendering cate ot treatment, ot by ot for the facility itself, that desctibed any ot
all of the following: abuse/neglect/ injury occusting at the facility, steps taken to investigate
the incidents, reports/records (including personnel) records, prepared ot maintained by the
facility, and/or suppotting information that was relied upon in creating a tepott, including all
information and recotds used ot reviewed in preparing repotts of abuse, neglect, or injuiy

42 U.8.C. § 10801(0)(2)(B)

5 *Probable cause means reasonable grounds for belicf that an individual with mental illness has been, or may be at
significant tisk of heing subject to abuse or neglect. The individual making such determination may hase the decision on
teasonable inferences drawen from his or her experience or training regatding similat incidents, conditions ox problems
that are usually associated with abuse or neglect.” Adive. e, v Tarvant Cly. Hosp. Dist., No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL
1297688, at *4 (N.D, Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

6 “Because the act indicates that the P & A system is the final arbiter of probable cause as between itself and the subject
facility, the facility mny not refuse access to records merely because it disagrees with the existence of probable cause.”
Advoe. Inv. v, Tarrant Cly. Hosp. Dist., No. 4:01-CV-062-BE, 2001 WL 1297688, at #4 (N.D. Tex. Oct. 11, 2001)

742 C.ER. § 51.42(b)

8 42 US.C. §§ 10805(a)(4), 15043()(2){D), (1)
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such as records which describe persons who were interviewed, physical and documentaty
evidence that was reviewed, and the related investigative findings.

(3) Dischatge planning recotds

(@) Repotts prepated by individuals and entities peforming certification ot licensuse reviews or
by ptofessional accreditation organizations, as well as velated assessments prepared for the
facility by its staff, contractoss, ot related entities

(5) Professional, performance, building, or othes safety standards, demographic, and statistical
information relating to facility

(6) Reasonable access to interview and examine all relevant recotds of any facility service
recipient consistent with Section 10805(a)(4) of the Act or employee

(7) Inspect and copy records, subject to a reasonable charge

INVESTIGATIVE REQUEST
As patt of it investigation, DRMS sequests access to any and all incident reposts which occusred

duting the months of August and September of 2021 as well as the incident repotts which have been
filed thus far in the month of October 2021 in the possession of EMSH,

Please provide DRMS with copies of the requested documentation within five (5) business days
upon receipt of this written notice. If the charge to produce such documentation exceeds an
amount totaling $100, please notify DRMS and we will come on site to inspect the
documents priof to reproduction,

DRMS will continue to conduct routine monitoring visits and these visits will occur unannounced
and duting different shifts at BMSH. However, monitoring access’ and investigative access ate
diffetent.

As this investigation progresses, DRMS may request other documents, employee/staff inteiviews,
and/ ot video surveillance footage pursuant to the access authority referenced hegein. DRMS
requests that any further requested documentation that is requited be provided to DRMS within five
(5) husiness days of such tequest. If DRMS any video surveillance not noted in this cortespondence,
we will notify this facility immediately and we tequest that any footage that has been flagged by

? Monitoring access allows a P&A system to provide information, training, and referral services to petsons with meatal
iftness, as well as ensure a mental health facility's “compliance with respect to the rights and safety of residents.” 42
C.ER. § 51.42()(1)-(2). A P&A system can engage in moniloring without any complaint of abuse or neglect, without
probable cause to believe that an incident has occurred, and without an allegation of imminent danger. Compare 42 C.F.R.
§ 51.42(c) with 42 CF.R. § 51.42(b).
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DRMS be preserved until such time as a DRMS advocate can schedule an on-site visit to view such
footage.

If DRMS’s access to facilities, prograins, residents, or records is delayed or denied, EMSH must
promptly provide a written statement, outlining the reasons for such denial or delay immediately.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this notice. [ can be
seached at (601) 968-0600 (ext. 250) or via email at ptribble@drms.ms.

Sincetely,
\M,%/‘\ U/l "4 (/)‘(,.Q._w._.,..mf__g
Polly Ttibble

Executive Director

e Cyndi Bubank, Office of the Attoiney General
MaCall Chastain, Office of the Attorney General




